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PRINCIPAL OPERATING FUNCTIONS 

The Edenhope and District Memorial Hospital is a public acute hospital with 20 acute 
beds, providing, maternity, general and acute medical, general surgical and paediatric 
care, a nursing home of 1 8  beds and a 1 7  bed hostel, Additional services provided 
include Physiotherapy, Podiatry, Occupational Health, Speech Therapy, Opthamology, 
Dietetics, Dentistry, Pathology, Radiology, Community Health, District Nursing and Meals 
on Wheels. Whilst it does not have a registered outpatients service, it does provide an 
accident and emergency service. 

MINISTERIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

The Hon. Robert Knowles M. L. C. is the Victorian Minister for Health. 
Dr Michael Wooldridge is the Federal Minister for Health and Family Services 
The Hon. Warwick Smith is the Federal Minister for Family Services 

LOCATION AND CONTACTS 

The Hospital is located at : - 1 2 8  - 1 3 4  Elizabeth Street Edenhope Victoria 3318 
The Postal Address i s : -  P .O .  Box 75 Edenhope Victoria 3318  
The Telephone number is :- (03) 5585 1 1 8 8  
The Facsimile number i s : -  (03) 5585 1405 

HISTORICAL PERSPECTIVE 

The hospital began in 1 9 1 0  and at that time it was situated in a house owned by Mr. 
Tabby Preece, in Elizabeth Street. The building was called Minogues, the name of the 
midwife who worked there at that time. In 1 9 1 3 ,  it became a Bush Nursing Hospital. 

The hospital was relocated to its present site utilising the home of Mrs. Dishon . The 
hospital was rebuilt in 1920, becoming two wards with a total of 5 beds. It continued to 
function in this manner until 1950, at which time control of the hospital was transferred to 
the Hospitals and Charities Commission. 

During 1961 the hospital underwent an upgrade and was extended, making it a 23 bed 
hospital. In 1981 approval was g iven for 8 beds in the Nurses Home to be reallocated as 8 
Nursing Home Beds , giv ing the hosp ital a total of 31 beds. 

In 1988/89 , a new nursing home was bui lt ,  creating a fac i l ity of 20 acute beds and 1 8  
nursing home beds . Dur ing 1990 the hosp ital renovated the " Halahan Wing " ,  making it a 
new dental and ancillary services wing. During 1992 and 1993 ,  the "Craig Wing" of the 
hosp ital was upgraded with the conversion of one ward to a H igh Dependency Unit. 

In 1998 the hospital officially opened its new hostel, kitchen, laundry and community 
health centre. 
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MISSION STATEMENT 

To provide the highest standard of care and health 
related services to our rural community 

VISION STATEMENT 

• We are the focus for health care in our community. 

• We provide an appropriately comprehensive range 
of health services. 

• We deliver our services in a caring, friendly and 
safe environment. 

• We respond to changing community needs and 
new technology. 

• We aim to achieve best practice in the delivery of 
our health services. 

• We meet or exceed community expectations in the 
provision of health services. 

• We deliver identified and relevant services to our 
community, in a cost effective manner, that is 
within available resources. 
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PRESIDENT'S REPORT 

Life Governors, Ladies and Gentleman, it is my pleasure to present on behalf of 
the Board of Management, the 37th Annual Report of the Edenhope & District 
Memorial Hospital for the year ending 30th of June 1998. 

This is my First year as President Board of the Board Management and I feel 
honoured to have been elected to this position, particularly during this period of 
major change. 

1997/98 could be described as a year of consolidation, as we finalised our building 
programs and reviewed the alternatives for the long term management of health 
services for our community. 

BUILDING PROGRAM 

The hospital has had a major bui lding program in place for the last ten years, in 
response to the identified need to rebuild and expand our facilities to meet the 
health needs of our community. I believe that it is worthwhile to summarise this 
bui lding program, which wi l l  give you an indication of our progress and the level of 
support that has been provided by our community. 

Nursing Home 
The program began with the construction of an 1 8  bed nursing home, which was 
completed in 1989.  The cost of this facility was $1,000,000 of which more than half 
was contributed by the community. The decision to build this nursing home has 
been vindicated by the level of support it has had. It has remained fully occupied 
since opening and we currently have six people on our waiting list. 

Analysis of Services 
After the completion of the new nursing home, careful analysis of the services 
provided by the hospital indicated that there were sti l l  gaps. Our major requirement 
was for hostel style accommodation. 

Hostel 
In 1993 the hosp i ta l  submitted its first applicat ion to the Commonwealth for 
approval to bui ld a seventeen bed hostel, which was not successful. In 1995 a 
further application was submitted and was successful. The Commonwealth 
Department of Human Serv ices confirmed that they would grant $560 ,230 towards 
the cost of the construction of the hostel. Tenders were called almost immed iately ,  
with bui ld ing works commencing in mid 1996 .  In March 1997 ,  the first res idents 
entered the hostel. By July 1997 ,  the hostel was fully occupied and has remained 
that way. Like the nurs ing home it also has a waiting l ist. 
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PRESIDENT'S REPORT (Cont.) 

Kitchen 
When planning for our new hostel, it became obvious that the kitchen, which had 
been designed for a 22 bed hospital, could not cope with the additional demand of 
a further 1 7  beds. The kitchen was redesigned to meet the requirements of our 55 
bed facility and meals on wheels, with the ability to expand further. It was therefore 
decided to proceed with this project simultaneously with the hostel. 

The state of the art cook-chill technology and spacious layout have guaranteed 
excellent work flows and allowed us to produce meals that are of a high quality 
and at a cost that is significantly below that of a standard commercial kitchen. 

However before we were able to commence, the hospital was advised that it had 
been successful in attracting a grant of $150,000, from a joint program of both 
Federal and State governments, the Home and Community Care program, to build 
a new laundry. The hospital reviewed its options and decided to complete these 
two activities together and expand the works to include a renovation of the entire 
area. 

The new laundry has reduced what are significant costs to a hospital such as ours 
and increased the employment opportunities for the district. Both facilities have 
been designed to accommodate additional commercial activities in the future and 
they now provide the hospital with an important outside source of income 

Elsie Bennett Community Centre 
At the same time as we were commencing construction of these two projects, we 
were also advised of our success in attracting a grant of $1 16 ,000 ,  which was also 
funded from Home and Community Care, to assist with the construction of a new 
Adult Day Care centre. The Board once again took the initiative and expanded 
upon this project to include in this new facility, community nursing , district nursing , 
allied health facilities and a dental suite. 

Official opening 
In October 1997 ,  it was with a great deal of pride that the hospital off icially opened 
the new hostel, laundry, kitchen and community centre. These buildings were 
completed at a cost that was slightly in excess of $2 ,000 ,000 . The funding of these 
costs is as follows :- 

The Commonwealth Department of Human Services $560 ,230 
Home and Commun ity Care grants $266,000 
Local community fundrais ing $64,000 
The Estate of the late E ls ie Bennett $85, 146 

However more than half of the costs, $1,027 ,677, has been funded by the hosp ital 
as a result of the surpluses achieved during the previous five years. 
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PRESIDENT'S REPORT (Cont.) 

Community Fundraising 
Our community fundraising was organised through a furnishings appeal, with the 
principal donors be ing : -  

Geoff and Helen Handbury 
The Murray to Moyne Cycle Relay Team 
The Edenhope Hospital Auxiliary 
Barkarla Flats for the Aged 
Edenhope Motor Cycle Club 
Mr Peter Carracher 
Apsley/Langkoop RSL 

and Community Groups and individuals that are too numerous to name. 

Our two major fundraising groups are the Murray to Mayne Cycle Relay Team and 
the Edenhope Hospital Auxiliary. Both of these groups have again been 
wonderfully generous in terms of the time that they give. As can be seen in the 
Murray to Mayne report on page 36, this year was an exceptionally difficult one 
and we thank you sincerely. The Edenhope Hospital Auxiliary is very dedicated 
group of people and a review of their activities for the year can be seen on page 
35, to these people I would also like to offer our thanks. 

To the many other groups and individuals who have donated funds to the hospital 
this year, I trust that you can see the results of your donation and extend our 
appreciation for them. 

Bequests 
As part of the funding for our bui lding program, the hospital received funds from a 
number of other sources, other than our fundraising appeal. 

We were extremely fortunate in receiving $85,146 from the Estate of the late Elsie 
Bennett, which is the largest single donation that the hospital has ever received 
and we were truly thankful. The hospital has received the support of two 
philanthropic trusts. The Uebergang Trust has donated $4,000 towards our 
building program and we have received a pledge of $50,000 from the Ian Rollo 
Currie Trust, which is administered by the Trust Company of Australia. 

Benefits for the Community 
These new facilities have been bui lt to meet the present and future needs of our 
community. 

The new hostel has a homelike, family atmosphere, that makes the transition from 
home less stressful. By having these facil it ies within our own community, it has 
enabled relatives and friends to frequently visit ,  making the residents feel at home. 
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PRESIDENT'S REPORT (Cont.) 

The new kitchen and laundry have ensured that these services are provided in a 
cost effective manner. Both facilities boast state of the art technology as well as 
servicing the needs of the hospital. 

The new community centre will focus community based services in a facility which 
is totally separate from our residential based services. The building is multi 
functional, as it is also used for functions and staff training. 

REVIEW OF FUTURE DIRECTIONS 

The reduced funding for health services the early 1990's, has caused many 
hospitals to change their role and or governance. These changes have often been 
forced decisions, based upon their inability to remain financially viable. 

While this hospital remains profitable, the Board of Management has investigated 
the options for our long term future, based upon the findings of the 1997 KPMG 
report. That report recommended that this hospital seek to become a Multi 
Purpose Service (MPS). The hospital has made two previous attempts to become 
an MPS site, both of which failed as a result of a lack of support for the concept, 
within the Shire. The rules governing the allocation of an MPS at that time, 
required all health services within a Shire, to amalgamate. This rule has since 
been altered, as a result of the amalgamations of shires in Victoria. 

To fully understand the concept of an MPS, the Board of Management, 
representatives of the Ballarat Regional Office of the Department of Human 
Services, and senior staff of the hospital, visited both the Corryong and Orbost 
MPS sites. As a result of these visits we have become very motivated to have our 
organisation accepted as an MPS site, as the advantages for our community far 
outway any disadvantages. 

The strong support that we have received for this concept, from the Ballarat 
Regional Office of the Department of Human Services has been very high. I would 
l ike to thank them for that support and their encouragement. 

BOARD OF MANAGEMENT 

I would like to congratulate Mr Ron Hawkins, who was President of the Board of 
Management for the three years prior to my appointment. Ron's leadership during 
a time of major change was instrumental in achieving the outcomes we sought in 
our rebuilding program. At the same time, he also faced the challenges of his 
appo intment as Comm issioner of the newly created West Wimmera Shire. 
Unfortunately he cannot be here tonight as he on a study tour of China .  
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PRESIDENT'S REPORT (Cont.) 

The Board of Management had no changes to its membership this year. The 
Board of management had two vacancies advertised this year, to commence as 
members from the 1 of November 1998. It was very pleasing to see both the 
quality and number of applicants that applied for these positions, as we had six 
nominations. Each applicant was able to demonstrate that they had a great deal to 
offer this organisation and while we look forward to the appointment of the two new 
members, we would encourage the unsuccessful applicants to apply again. 

The results that have been achieved this year are commensurate with the time and 
effort that the Board members have given. Health services are extremely complex 
entities and the provision of these services to our community is a vital component 
of the well being of that community. 

STAFF 

As is said each year, our staff and medical practitioners are our greatest asset. 
The reputation of our services is bui lt upon the care, understanding and 
professional manner in which we deliver services to our clients. This reputation is 
evidenced by the size of our waiting lists for our aged care facilities and the 
number of patients who live outside of our area, that seek medical care from us. 
As an example of this support, 12% of our patients come from South Australia. 

At our annual meetings, it has become traditional for us to acknowledge those 
members of the staff and Board of Management, that have passed milestones in 
terms of their years of service to the community. 

This year we have two staff members that have achieved ten years of service, 
J ill ian McClure and Elizabeth Carter. 

On the twenty fifth of November 1972, the hospital employed Elizabeth Carracher 
and three weeks later, on the eighteenth of December, Pam Cameron was 
employed. Given this outstanding length of service and their dedication to their 
work, I think we should congratulate the person that employed them. 

Each of these employees will receive a presentation later in the evening. 

The hospital has been unable to find a permanent replacement for Dr. Ron Bade, 
since he retired in 1997. He has however worked on a part time basis to relieve 
Dr. Phi l  Dover. Phi l  has borne the brunt of coping with the large medical practice 
that covers Apsley to Harrow, as well as inpatients in the hospital, nursing home 
and hostel. We are grateful for the wonderful service that we receive from these 
doctors and hope that our efforts to find a replacement will be successful ear ly in 
1999. 
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PRESIDENT'S REPORT (Cont.) 

I  would like to thank our executive officers for their dedication and leadership. Ms 
Sandra H i n c h ,  our Director of Nursing, has had significant health problems this 
year, but has continued to provide sound management in the face of this adversity. 
Mr Timothy Free, our Chief Executive Officer, continues to manage this facility in 
such a way that we are able to provide excellence in health care, while remaining 
financially sound. In addition to this, he is always looking to provide the Board with 
options for the future. 

FINANCE 

I  will leave the details of our financial situation to our Treasurer for his report, 
however it is p l e a s i n g  to be able to report that the hospital had an operating 
surplus of $ 1 3 2 , 1 7 2  for the year. 

What is not as positive to report, is the continued erosion of the hospital's financial 
s i t u a t i o n ,  by both Federal and State Governments. We are given a new funding 
formula each year by the State Government for our acute facilities. This formula 
continues to erode our f u n d i n g ,  w h i l e  benefiting the larger metropolitan hospitals. 
In our aged care sector, changes by the Federal Government continue to reduce 
the funding in that area, particularly for our nursing home. W h i l e  we maintain 
1 0 0 %  occupancy in the nursing home and carefully watch our costs, that part of 
our facility is now losing $ 1 2 0 , 0 0 0  per year. 

CONCLUSIONS 

This has been a year of consolidation of our current situation and p l a n n i n g  for our 
future. Our quality of care is recognised by both our peers, as evidenced by our 
continued accreditation, and by our customers, as evidenced by the distance 
people are prepared to travel for our services. 

We recognise that we are an important part of this community, as the major 
employer in the area. But we also recognise that you, who are the consumers of 
our services, are v i t a l l y  important to us and we look forward to your continued 
support. 

Should we be successful in our bid to become an M P S ,  a  major part of the 
p l a n n i n g  for that change , will  be a comprehensive round of consultations with our 
community. T h i s  will g ive us the information that we require to ensure that the 
services that we provide are the services that you want. 

Mr Michael Holland 

President 
Board of Management 
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TREASURER'S REPORT 

This has been a stable year in terms of the financial status of the Edenhope and 
District Memorial Hospital. 

The facility had an operating surplus, prior to capital and depreciation 
adjustments, of $132 , 172 for the year, which is $45,859 less than 1996/97. Our 
total operating deficit, after accounting for depreciation and capital, was $13,624, 
which on first glance would appear to be a major reversal when compared to our 
operating surplus of $307,595 in 1996/97. If you look at the revenue and expense 
statement, it details that in 1996/97, the hospital had $270,465 of capital income, 
the majority of which was the Government's contribution to our building program, 
while in 1997/98 our capital income was only $7,007. 

The revenue and expense statement shows that the hospital has had a total 
operating expenditure of $3,012,368 which when compared to 1996/97, where 
there was expenditure totalling $2,641,588, is an increase of $287,758 or 10.6%. 
The two major items included in this increase were the increased cost of operating 
the new hostel for a full year, ($196,278) and increased salaries, ($84,599). 

Operating revenue amounted to $3,144,540 compared to $$2,902,641 in 1996/97, 
which is an increase of $241,899 or 7.7%. The major impacts upon our revenue 
were the additional income generated by the first full year of the hostel, ($264,932) 
and reductions in the amount of donations and interest on investments, (-$57,898). 

The balance sheet detai ls the movements in assets and l iabi l i t ies and from that the 
fol lowing po ints shou ld be noted :- 

Total equity has been reduced by $ 13,624 to $3,374,463 
Total l iabi l it ies have increased by $ 130 , 103 to $ 1 , 0 1 1 , 7 0 3  
Cash and investments have decreased by $ 24,338 to $ 5,328 
Total current assets have increased by $ 67,125 to $ 339,527 
Total Assets have increased by $ 1 16 ,479 to $4 ,386 , 166 

These figures prov ide proof of the f inancial strength of this hosp ita l with an 
exceptional asset to liab i l ity ratio of 4 .34. 

On the deb it s ide ,  the hosp ital is faced with the very large costs associated with 
the Year 2000 bug. The cost of achiev ing Year 2000 comp l iance will be 
considerable but we believe that the Victorian Government intends to assist the 
hospital in this area. 

Mr. Donald Currie 

Treasurer 

Board of Management 
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REPORT 

The Board of Management and executives of the hospital have a long term plan in 
place, to redevelop our facilities, to provide the widest range of appropriate health care, 
to employ highly trained and caring staff, to foster an environment where quality is 
paramount and to remain financially viable. 

In my opinion, these goals that we have set have been achieved. That is not to say that 
we are now satisfied and are prepared to rest on our laurels. The Board, our Director of 
Nursing and myself are-continually striving to bring to our community the highest quality 
of care. We do not see that being an isolated smaller community means that we should 
have a second class service. 

Facilities 

The Presidents report detailed the scope of our building redevelopment that has been 
undertaken in the past two years and I can add very l ittle to that, except to say that I am 
proud of what we have accomplished. Our plans for the future include the building of a 
new acute hospital and nursing home and the conversion of our current nursing home 
into an expanded community health facility. A grand plan, Yes, Is it achievable?, Well if 
you do not aim high then you can never expect to reach great heights. 

Health Services 

The health services of this community depend upon the availability of highly trained and 
motivated medical officers. The catchment population of our area requires the services 
of two point something medical officers. That is, we need between two and three 
medical officers. Since Dr Bade retired, Dr Dover has been forced to maintain services 
as a sole practitioner, with some relief from locums and Dr Bade working part time. This 
has meant that our surgical capability has been curtailed, Dr Dover has been placed 
under a great deal of pressure and there is no choice of medical officer. 

As the hospital has been unable to recruit a replacement for Dr Bade, this can be seen 
as a major fai l ing. However we are not alone in this situation, as many rural towns face 
the same dilemma. On the brighter side, the hospital and Dr Dover have been 
negotiating with two medical officers, one of whom is a GP Surgeon, to take up practice 
in the town. If we are successful, we will once again be very well placed to continue our 
program of expanding services to the community. 

A very positive outcome has been achieved in the area of dental services. The dentist 
that we had, resigned in June 1997. The hospitals decision to bui ld a modern dental 
surgery in the new community centre has proven to be a correct one, as we have been 
able to attract a new service. Dr. Tim Halloran has been been providing a weekly 
service since October 1997, which has doubled our previous service. A testament to his 
abil ity is indicated by the length of his waiting l ist, which continues to grow. 
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REPORT 

Health Services (Cont.) 

Despite having 34% of our acute patients are "same day patients", our conversion ratio 
of 0.855 WIES per separation is still very high. WIES is a weighting system of payment 
for hospitals, where the cost of treating a patient is given a higher weight for those 
illnesses that require additional care. Therefore, a low ratio such as 0.7 indicates the 
treatment of patients with less complicated illnesses than a hospital with a ratio of 0.9. 

Our ratio of 0.855 is a good indication of the severity of the illnesses for which patients 
are treated at this hospital. 

The reasons for the very high ratio of "Same Day Patients", has been that this is the first 
full year of providing a three times per week dialysis service, since 1988. In addition to 
this service the hospital has continued to provide chemotherapy services on a "same 
day" basis. 

Staffing 

Our reputation for having highly qualified and caring staff is well earned. Staff members 
regularly attend in-house and external education, to improve not only their own skills, 
but those of their colleagues. 

I often say to visitors to our hospital, "Because of our size, in this hospital you are 
treated as a person not a number". The care of our patients is the concern of all of our 
staff, not just those whose position determines that this is their role. 

I am proud , as I believe our community is, of the k indness, consideration and 
competence of the people that work here. I would like to take this opportunity to thank 
them, both for myself and on behalf our clients. 

Finance 

Our Treasurer has already detailed the state of our finances, however I would like to 
comment upon what the future may hold for this hospital. The V ictorian Government still 
seeks to achieve a productivity cut each year. This hospital has experienced a budget 
reduction in excess of 30% since the introduction of Casemix funding . Obvious ly, the 
Government was correct in assuming that the funding for hosp ita ls had been over ly 
generous in the past, which is evidenced by the fact that we are still here. The concern 
is at what point will they believe that the system has been pushed to the max imum. 
Similarly, the Federal Government has reduced the funding for aged care services to a 
critical point. Under the current funding arrangements , we can cont inue to provide a 
viable health service , but a continuation of budget reductions would have serious 
repercussions for this faci l ity . 
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REPORT 

Quality 

The Edenhope & District Memorial Hospital is proud to be able to say that it is an 
accredited facility, by the Australian Council on Healthcare Standards. This award is not 
given lightly, and in my humble opinion, I believe that it was richly deserved. 

Accreditation impacts upon every employee in the hospital and commits them to 
achieving the best possible outcomes in al l  aspects of their work. It has brought the 
various departments within the facility much closer together, as each recognises the 
valuable contribution that we all make to the overall care that we provide. 

Thanks 

I am fortunate to be supported by a very experienced and multi-skilled administrative 
staff and I would like to thank them for another year in which they have survived the 
pressure. 

Sandra Hinch, our Director of Nursing has provided me with sound medical advice and 
her wide range of skills which are invaluable to this organisation. 

Dr Ron Bade and in particular Dr Phil Dover continue to amaze me with the quality and 
complexity of the care they provide and I would especially thank them for their 
assistance at a Board level in relation to medical policy. 

This hospital is served by a Board of Management that seeks no accolades, but is very 
deserving of them. The health system for an organisation that is as varied as this one, is 
extremely complex, with the Board Members being required to grasp the intricacies of 
the continual changes being implemented. The Board Members give a great deal of 
their precious time to the hospital and provide it with sound leadership and support for 
continual improvement in all areas of our endeavours. It is a pleasure to work with them 
and on your behalf and myself, I sincerely thank them. 

To the heads of departments within the hospital, I would like to thank you and your staff 
for the support that I receive. 

Conclusion 

Final ly ,  I  would like to say that if you are unfortunately sick, or in need any of the 
services that we provide , forget the rest, we are the best. 

Timothy Free 
Chief Executive Officer 
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REPORT ON OPERATIONS 

DEMOGRAPHY 

Shire of West Wimmera 

Township of Edenhope 

The township of Edenhope is located in the Western District of Victoria and is a 
major town in the West Wimmera Shire (WS). It is 395 kilometres from Melbourne. 

Melbourne provides the community with the majority of its requirements for tertiary 
health facilities. Ballarat is 287 kilometres from Edenhope, and is the nearest rural 
tertiary health care facility. Horsham is 100 kilometres from Edenhope, and is the 
nearest sub-regional base hospital. There are a number of simi lar or smaller sized 
Victorian health care facilities in the vicinity but none of these are within an 80 
kilometre radius of Edenhope. 

The Hospital is situated in an intensive farming region, largely based upon sheep, 
with a minor amount of cattle and cropping. There is little manufacturing within the 
area and the tertiary sector is comparatively small. 

It is a relatively isolated community that is located in one of the most sparsely 
populated parts of that State. The Shire of West Wimmera covers an area of 9,030 
sq. km. and has a population of 4,931 people, giving it a population density of 0.55 
people per sq. km.The township of Edenhope has a population of 776. 

The catchment area of the EDMH comprises an area bounded by the Little Desert to 
the north, Douglas and Balmoral to the east, Chetwynd to the south and into South 
Australia east of the township of Naracoorte, to the west. 

In terms of income, this area is one of the poorest in Victoria. This difference is 
clearly demonstrated by the fact that 66% of Victorian's earn less than $500 per 
week compared to 78% of people in the West Wimmera Shire and 81 % in 
Edenhope. A simi lar variance occurs in the range $120-$500 per week. 

An analysis of the variances by age groups, between the Victorian, West Wimmera 
Shire and Edenhope populations is represented in the following graph. F igures were 
compiled from data in the 1996 census. 
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POPULATION BY AGE GROUPS 
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An analysis of Graph 1 provides the information detailed in the following table. 

VARIANCE, 

AGE VIC. VS SIGNIFICANT VARIANCES 

GROUP EDENHOPE 

0-9 -0.54% There are slight differences between the WWS and the 
other two groups which are very similar. ( 1 . 7%)  

10- 19  2.73% Edenhope has a lower proportion than the Victorian levels, 
while the WWS is sl ightly lower than Victoria ( 1 .5%)  

20-39 10 .67% This is the group with the highest variance. The WWS has 
a proportion 7.4% less than Victoria and Edenhope has an 
even lower proportion than the WWS, by a further 3.3% 

40-59 1 .59% The proportions in this age group are very simi lar with the 
WWS being sl ight ly higher than the other two. 

60-69 -4.80% The proportional differences in this group are significant ,  
w ith the WWS hav ing a higher proportion than Victoria by 
3 .3% and Edenhope having 1 . 5% more than the WWS. 

>69 - 10 .57% This age grouping has a s imi lar ly large variance to the 
largest variance group , the 20-39 group. Importantly ,  the 
WWS has a variance of only 2 .27% compared to Victorian 
and Edenhope has an add i t iona l  8 .3% variance .  
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REPORT ON OPERATIONS 

HUMAN RESOURCES AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS 
There have been no significant changes in the staffing policy or human resources 
during the year. There was no lost time due to industrial disputes or accidents. 

PECUNIARY INTERESTS 
No employee of the hospital is required to complete a declaration of pecuniary 
interests. Board Members are required to declare any interests in matters to be 
discussed at Board meetings at the beginning of that meeting. 

FREEDOM OF INFORMATION 
The hospital receives requests for information from patients, medical practitioners 
and/or legal representatives. All such requests have been resolved and no 
application was made under the Freedom of Information Act during the year. 

MAJOR COMMITTEES 
The following Sub-Committees meet on a monthly basis and forward their 
recommendations to the full Board of Management. 

Physical Resources Sub-Committee 
Reports to the Board on the bui ldings, grounds and equipment and projects currently 
being undertaken or planned for the future. 

Finance Sub-Committee 
Examines financial reports, budgets, staffing levels, debt collection and accounting 
procedures and satisfies itself that a l l  funds and investments are held to the best 
advantage and in a secure form. 

Audit Sub-Committee 
Examines financial accounts prior to their approval for payment and makes 
recommendations to the Board of Management, in relation to the validity of those 
accounts. 

Patient Care Sub-Committee 
Reviews patient care and makes recommendations concerning policy issues dealing 
with patients. 

The Board is satisfied that these Committees are functioning effectively and are 
fulfilling the purpose for which they were established. 

PUBLICATIONS 
No other publications relating to the Hospital were published this year. 

Page 16  
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Edenhope & District Memorial Hospital Annual Report199798 

REPORT ON OPERATIONS 

CONSULTANCIES 

The hospital has not entered into any major consultancies this year. 

ASSET PUCHASES, UPGRADES AND BUILDING PROJECTS 1997/98 

Consistent with our policy of replacement of equipment and upgrading of the 
physical infrastructure, the following assets have been purchased or constructed. 

ADDITIONS/PURCHASES DEPARTMENT COST 

Halahan Wing Upgrade Administration 26,493 

Support Services Upgrade Catering/Laundry 3 , 158  

Electrical Services upgrade Facility Wide 4,847 

Lighting Upgrade Hostel 2 , 1 2 3  

Construction Els ie Bennett Centre 285,739 

Construction New Carpark 40,429 

Mobile Shower Trolley Nursing Home 3,800 

Ti lt Tub Water Chair Nursing Home 1 ,530 

Treadmil l  Physiotherapy 2,065 

Photocopier Administration 3,700 

Heat Seal Machine Laundry 1 , 1 7 0  

Computer Equipment Administration 5,800 

Satell ite Dish Facil ity Wide 2,000 

3 Refrigerators Facil ity Wide 1 ,345 

Hostel Landscaping Suppl ies Hostel 2,204 

Nurse Cal l  System (Stage2) Facil ity Wide 4,260 

Furniture Hostel Respite Room 1 ,940 

Furniture and Fittings Els ie Bennett Centre 17 ,339 

Linen Laundry 1 0 , 5 1 8  

1  Addit ional Motor Vehicle Visit ing Medical Officer 25,262 

Motor Vehicle Changeover Fleet (97) 

TOTAL $476,536 
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REPORT ON OPERATIONS 

COMPARATIVE SERVICE & ACTIVITY DATA 

SERVICE / ACTIVITY 97/98 96/97 95/96 94/95 93/94 5 Year 

ACUTE SERVICES Average 

Admitted Patients Separations 

Acute 505 508 626 550 6 1 4  560.6 

Same Day Acute 262 147 73 1 1 2  169 152.6 

Sub-Total Acute 767 655 699 662 783 713 .2  

Nursing Home Type 1 1  33 14 7 6 14.2 

Total Admitted Patient 778 688 7 1 3  669 789 727.4 
Separations 

Admitted Patient Beddays 

Acute 3747 3504 4075 3818  4020 3832.8 

Nursing Home Type 1068 1228 989 850 777 982.4 

Total Admitted Patient Beddays 4815 4732 5064 4668 4797 4815.2 

Admitted Patient WIES 

Acute 656 620 690 670 744 676 

Ratio Separations : WIES 0.855 0.947 0.988 1 .024 0.958 0.954 

Average Length of Stay 

Acute 4.2 4.24 5.83 5.83 5 . 1 7  5.054 

Nursing Home Type 97.1 19.49 70.64 1 2 1 .4 3  129 .5 87.6 

Occupancy 65.96% 65.00% 73.00% 64.00% 66.00% 66.79% 

RESIDENTIAL SERVICES 

Nursing Home Beddays 6351 6569 6498 6563 6561 6547.75 

Nursing Home Occupancy 96.67% 99.98% 98.90% 99.89% 99.86% 99.66% 

Hostel Beddays (Opened 5633 904 Ni l  Ni l  N i l  NIA 

26/3/97) 
Hostel Occupancy 96.46% 59.00% N/A NIA N/A N/A 

OUTPATIENT SERVICES 

Occasions of Service 16440 16270 1 6 5 1 8  16584 20702 1 7 5 1 8 . 5  
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Edenhope & District Memorial Hospital Annual Report1 99798 

REPORT ON OPERATIONS 

Admitted Patient 

Acute Separations 

Same Day 95 

Multi Day 672 

Total Separations 767 

Emergency 1 1 7  

Elective 338 

Other including Maternity 312  

Total Separtions 767 

Public Separations 638 

Total WIES 656 

Separations per Available Bed 38.35 

Total Bed Days 4815 

Non-Admitted Patients Acute Aged Other 

Outpatients - Occassions of Service 2073 235 

Other Services - Occassions of Service 7306 3994 

Total Occassions of Service 2073 7306 4229 

Revenue Indicators 

Average Collection Days 

1997/98 1996/97 

Private 25 28 

TAC 61 45 

VWA - - 

Other Compensable 45 47 

Nursing Home 1 5  32 

Debtors Outstanding as at 30 June 1998 

Under 30 31 - 60 6 1 -  90 Over 90 Total Total 

days days days days 30/6/98 30/6/97 

Private 12400 16306 7867 2252 38825 15979 

TAC - - - - - 15762 

VWA - - - - - - 

Other Compensable - 261 . 

- 261 . 

Nursing Home 8288 12050 2174 3440 25952 35312 

Total 20688 28617 10041 5692 65038 67053 
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REPORT ON OPERATIONS 

A snapshot of the activities of the hospital and a comparison of that activity 

compared to the previous year, is detailed on the previous tables. From those tables 

you can make the following observations about the major changes that have 

occurred, compared to the previous year : 

SERVICE AND ACTIVITY 

There has been an increase of 90 acute separations this year which is an 

increase of 13%. The major influence in this area has been an increase in 

same day acute patients, which has increase by 1 1 5  patients or 78%. This 

major change is the result of the hospital undertaking maintenance dialysis 

for the first time in many years. 

Acute admitted bed days have increased by 237 or 7%. Nursing home type 

bed days have reduced by 160 or 15%.  This can be attributed to the 

influence of the new hostel, which provides an alternative for aged care 

placement. 

Our WIES (Weighted Inlier Equivalent Separation) have increased by 36 or 

6%, but our ration of separations to WIES has reduced from 0.947 to 0.855 

or 1 1 % ,  which is reflective of the increased same day stay patients. 

Our average length of stay has remained relatively constant at 4.2, as has 

our occupancy at 65.96%. 

Nursing home bed days are down slightly, which was a result of a short 

period of t ime when we had a vacancy and no clients on our waiting l ist. 

In its first full year of operation, the hostel achieved an occupancy of 96.46% 

which is a pleas ing resu lt. 

Outpatient occasions of serv ice were simi lar to the previous year. 

MAJOR FINANCIAL INDICATORS 

This table is self explanatory and indicates a very viable and financ ially 

stable organisat ion .  
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DIRECTOR OF NURSING'S REPORT 

The provision of the highest standard of patient care in hospital based and community services is an 
objective of this hospital. Services delivered in acute, residential aged care and the community have 
in the past year set goals to achieve outcomes in line with this objective. 

Planning staff training and development in these services has been an important activity: the purpose 
to ensure the provision of sufficient appropriately skilled staff to meet the service objectives of this 
hospital. 

A Continuing Nurse Education Training & Development grant o f$  6,300 was received this year. This 
grant targets acute nursing skills and education. It has been utilised to engage a nursing educator to 
facilitate inservice education in Advanced Life Support and skills assessment and to plan clinical 
placements for staff at major centres in clinical areas such as midwifery and theatre. In addition, 
educational videos relating to cardiac emergencies and obstetrics have been purchased and access 
to external education seminars encouraged. 

Training relevant to the aged care and residential facilities has included a number of staff completing 
an aged care incentive course and three staff members completing the T AFE Personal care 
attendants program. This continued training and development of personnel ensures the continued 
availability of appropriately skilled staff and the provision of a high standard of care throughout the 
facility. 

As a hospital based service we provide a wide range of services for clients and patients. Co 
ordination of services to clients and patients has been a priority and the implementation of discharge 
planning has facilitated a program to bring hospital and community based services together in order 
to plan with a client the package of services necessary to effectively maintain them in their homes. 

The opening of the Elsie Bennett Day Care Centre has provided an opportunity to widen the range of 
activities offered across the Day Centre program. 

In addition the complex accommodates the District Nurse, Community Nurse, Dentist and visiting 
Allied Health personnel. The location of these services at the one site has improved the efficiency of 
service delivery and access for clients. 

Community Health and the promotion of wellness has become an important strategy throughout the 
health industry. The wide range of programs offered this past year has taken into account the 
education and health screening needs of a diverse group of clients. This is one service that continues 
to expand in response to the promotion of its programs and the expanding health service demands of 
the community. 

The standard of care and serv ice throughout this facility received Accreditation status in February 
1997. At present all departments are preparing for a periodic review scheduled for July 1998 . This is 
a busy t ime for all department heads as additional planning and meetings are necessary. 

In closing I would like to thank Meredith Finnigan for assuming the responsibil ities as Acting Director 
of Nursing for the periods I have been absent. Mandy King for keeping the accreditation program on 
l ine in preparation for a periodic review this coming July 1998, and to Mr Tim Free , Chief Executive 
Officer for his ass istance and adv ice this past year. 

Sandra Hinch 

Director of Nursing 
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OFFICE BEARER'S 

BOARD PRESIDENT 

Mr. M. Hol land 

TREASURER 

Mr. D. Currie 

BOARD MEMBERS 

Dr. R. W. Bade 
Mrs. E. M. M. Edgar 
Mr. C. Kealy 

LIFE GOVERNORS 

Mr. M. C. Crawford 
Mr. L. M. Bul l  
Mrs. L. A Hadden 
Dr. R. W. Bade 
Mr. J .  L. Jenkins 
Mr. R. McDonald 
Mr. J. S. Warner 
Mr. C. Kealy 

REGIONAL DELEGATES 

Mrs. E.M.M.  Edgar 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

Mr. T. J. Free 

VISITING MEDICAL OFFICERS 

Dr. R. W. Bade 
Mr. E. Miller 

SENIOR VICE-PRESIDENT 

Mr. R. R. Hawkins 

JUNIOR VICE-PRESIDENT 

Mrs. E. Kealy 

Dr. P. A J. Dover 
Mrs. J. L. Heffernan 
Mr. J. S. Warner 

Mrs. S. Dubois 
Mr. R. T. Hood 
Mrs. L. Stephens 
Mr. E. J. Narik 
Mrs. C. A Hood 
Mr. R. R. Hawkins 
Mrs. I. Oliver 

Mrs. J. L. Heffernan 

DIRECTOR OF NURSING 

Miss. S. Hinch 

Dr. P. A J. Dover 
Dr. R. Jarvis 

VISITING SPECIALIST SERVICES 

Dentist : Dr. T. Halloran Gerontologist : Mr. J. Hurley 
Physiotherapy: Hamilton Base Hospital Medical Records Admin . :  Ms. M. Taylor 
Podiatr ist :  Mrs. J. Johnston Optometrist: Mr. R. Liddy 
Speech Therapy :- Wimmera Health Care Radiography Bendigo Radiology 
Service 

AUDITOR 

Auditor General Victoria 
Agents : Callaway & Hecht 

ARCHITECTS - CONSTRUCTION 

Robert Miles 

BANKERS 

National Australia Bank 

ARCHITECTS - MASTERPLANNING 

Silver Thomas Hanley 
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STAFF EMPLOYED 1997/98 

Buckley, M.D.  
White, M.A. 
Mulcahy, LT. 
Young, D.J .  
Burford, A.F. 
McClure, J .M.  
McDonald, C .E. 
Seabrook, E.M. 
Clifton, D .R. 
White, J .M.  
Saunders, A.P. 
Cryer, W.L. 
Pretlove, A.J. 
King, L.A. 
Jones, S.T. 
Cameron, E. C. 
Rodgers, K.H .T.* 
Lee, M.F .  
Welch, D .S .  
Wilson, A.L. 
Harrington, J .M.  
Hair, G.M. 

Cameron, P.J .  
Kelly, P.M. 
Farran, J .E. 
Smith, W.M. 

Clark, B.A. 
Hannaford, G.M. 
Sheridan, A.M. 
Lloyd, A.J. 
Clark, B .C .  
Shields, H .F .  
Free, T.J.P .  
Ackland, J.A. 
King, A. L. 
Dover, L. * 
Johnson, C.A. 
Tansley, N. 
Kreiter, C. 
Smyth, A. 
Thomson, L.E. 
Mitchell, C.J .  
Harrington, D .L.* 
Rodgers, K.H.T. 

Carracher, E. F. 
Field, D .J .  
Mcleish, D .L. 
Burgess, T.A. 
Clarke, G.J .  
Vanzini, J .F .  
Dishon, V.L. 
Robinson, K. 

Forster, M.J .  
Middleton, C.A. 
Cranage, S.G.  
Castello, C .R. 
Schmidt, S .J .  
Wilson, K.M. 
Whitehead, D .L.* 
Burns, S .L. 
Hempel, N .J .  
Chaston, K.L .  
Goodwin, J .E. 
Tuffnell, S .L. 
Lahne, C. 
Norman, K.A. 

Wheeler, H. 
Hinch, S .J .  
Walker, S .C .  
Finnigan, M.A. 
Carter, E.M. 
Pahl, N.A. 
Winter, R. M. 
Tansey, M. 

Fergusson, H.M. 
Colgate, E.M. 
Dishon, M. E. 
Caldow, A. 
Hocking, T 

Colgate, M. L. 
Retallick, J .H .  
Cornish, A. 
Johnston, A.J .D .  
Adams, J .M.  

Schuller, J. R. 
Doman Goldburg, J.A. 
Mulraney, E.F. 

* Indicates those staff who resigned during the 1997/98 financial year. 

The following table represents the number of equivalent full time (EFT) staff 

employed by department. 

EFT EFT EFT EFT EFT EFT EFT EFT 

Department 90/91 91/92 92/93 93/94 94/95 95/96 96/97 97/98 

Direct Nursing 27.90 26.78 26.76 25.67 22.95 24.27 23.39 22.44 

Hostel Services 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.27 3.85 

Community Nursing 0.85 0.85 0.78 0.85 0.77 0.84 0.91 0.81 

District Nursing 1 .32 1 .24 1 . 1 2  1 . 0 1  1 .08 1 . 1 1  1 .37 1 . 1 7  

Hotel Services 12.50 13 .06 12 .10 10.74 10.03 9.35 1 1 . 3 7  12.08 

Administrative Services 2.91 2.97 3.04 3.01 3.46 3.82 4.00 4 . 12  

Maintenance Services 3.25 2.71 2.76 2.00 2.00 2.00 3.00 2.72 

Allied Health Services 0.48 1 .03  1 . 1 4  0.62 0.00 0.00 0.56 0.59 

Day Care Centre 2.02 1 .99  2.01 2.02 1 .7 1  2.06 1 .83  1 .60 

Total 51 .23 50.63 49.71 45.92 42.00 43.45 49.70 49.39 
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ORGANISATIONAL CHART 

EDENHOPE & DISTRICT MEMORIAL HOSPITAL 

ORGANISATIONAL CHART 
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DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS 

ACUTE CARE SERVICES 1997/98 

Over the last 1 2  months the acute ward has continued to offer care at its usual high 

standard, achieved by a multi-disciplinary approach where all members of the 

medical, nursing and allied health workers combine as a team. 

The overall care is made easier by the continued updating and maintenance of our 

equipment. Thanks must go the Murray to Mayne Cycle Team for purchasing a 

recliner chair; the Lake Charlegrark Country Music Committee for donating money to 

purchase another electric bed and the Ladies Auxiliary who help with ward 

refurbishments and equipment needs throughout the year. 

It is necessary for nursing staff at all levels have a wide range of nursing skills 

because of the diversification of cases presenting to us. To maintain and increase 

their skills, staff attend education programs both at our own hospital and other 

facil it ies. This year has seen the introduction of education and assessment in 

Advanced Life Support skills. Four Division 1 nurses successfully sat the practical 

and theoretical exam and obtained their certificates. Linda Mulcahy, Debbie 

Mcleish, Therese Burgess and Meredith Finnigan are now able to initiate life saving 

techniques. Janis Vanzini and Carolyn Middleton have also been to Melbourne and 

undertaken training in renal haemodialysis. 

We welcome to the staff Division 1 Nurses Judy Harrington, Gill ian Hair and Carolyn 

Mitchell and Division 2 Nurse, Amy Wilson. Melanie Credlin is coming to us from 

Geelong and will be with us for 1 2  months as our Graduate Nurse. 

With our active involvement in both Accreditation and Quality Management we can 

look forward to a future in which we all strive for continuous improvement. 

Meredith Finnigan 

Charge Nurse Acute 
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DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS 
ADMINISTRATION ANNUAL REPORT 1997/98 

Once again it has been it has been a year of change and challenge for the administration 
department. Aged Care, accreditation, staff changes and physical restructure have been at the 
forefront of activities over the year. 

The Aged Care Act 1997 which finally came into being on 1/10/97, after initially being scheduled 
for 1/7/97, really required a combined and concerted effort by all of the Administration, Nursing 
Home , Hostel and ACAS staff to grasp its implications on this organisation. The Act was then 
revised several times over the next few months which really made for good headache material 
for all of us and I'm sure, for all aged care facilities across the nation. New policies and 
procedures had to be devised , revised and revised again as the act evolved. 

After our great success of being awarded accreditation status for three years in February 1997, 
we will have our interim survey in July 1998, therefore accreditation and in particular quality 
improvement activities remained high on our agenda. 

The physical environment of this Department had long been a concern to the organisation, with 
limited space and congestion which made for very trying working conditions. Fortunately with the 
relocation of District Nursing and Community Health Staff and the dental suite to the new Elsie 
Bennett Community Centre, the old Halahan wing became vacant. Renovations commenced in 
December 1997 converting the area into new offices for the CEO and DON and a reception 
area. With the old CEO office vacant our work area was enlarged to more than double the 
previous area. This was accomplished with the many talents of our maintenance staff namely 
Andrew and Darren. Sheree Welch was promoted to the new position of executive assistant to 
the CEO and DON, which was of particular benefit in our lead up to the accreditation survey. To 
take up this new role Sheree could not take all of her previous responsibilities with her and so a 
position was made for a half time accounts payable clerk. We were very lucky to appoint Liz 
Mulraney to this position. Liz has settled into this position very quickly and competently and we 
welcome her aboard. Another new face this year was Meredith Taylor who replaced Paula Aryton 
as our visiting medical record administrator from the West Wimmera Health Service. Meredith 
has fitted in extremely well on her fortnightly visits and shown great determination in coming to 
grips with casemix funding. 

During the year, for family reasons, I dropped back from full time to 6 hours per day and I would 
like to thank all of the admin staff, particularly Mandy, who has picked up much of the slack, for 
supporting me in this move. 

This next year will be a huge one as we gear up for the Year 2000. All finance and patient 
systems will be replaced as well as most computer hardware and so it will be a huge year of 
training and implementation for all concerned. There is always something new and major on the 
horizon . . ..  but we always seem to get there in the end . 

To all staff , particularly Mandy ,Liz and Sheree, for your dedication, support and patience 
throughout the year . . .  a  big thank you. 

Suzie Cranage 
Administratiive Services Supervisor 

Page 27 



Edenhope & District Memorial Hospital Annual Report1997/98 

DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS 

FOOD SERVICES DEPARTMENT 1997-98 

When I was asked for our department's report for the 1997-98 annual report, I found it 
was hard to believe 12  months have already passed since our last summation of events. 

Eighteen months after opening our new kitchen, the Food Services Department is starting 
to attract outside catering contracts. An example of these are shire functions, shearers 
lunches, birthdays etc, all of which have been very well received with many compliments 
being returned. 

As part of our ongoing commitment to improvement, a new menu structure is to be 
introduced allowing patients to choose their meals via a tick box form. This will prove to 
be of great benefit to our clients with a larger variety of menu items to select from. 

As we continue to strive to be the best we can I would like to thank all staff associated 
with Food Services for their hard work and dedication to clients needs. 

Andrew Saunders 
Food Services Manager 

ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES 1997-98 

It's that time of the year again, time to reflect on the past twelve months! After the 
excitement and jubilation of gaining accreditation it was back to reality. This year has 
been a very busy year, with the ongoing EQUIP program, improving on the outcomes of 
Quality Assurance audits and recommendations by the ACHS. 

The opening of the Elsie Bennett Community Centre in October was a great success ( in 
spite of the weather). As with all new facilities the need to provide an efficient and 
economical cleaning service was formulated using existing staff and resources. This is a 
great venue and has been utilised on numerous occasions for fundraising and social 
functions. 

With the hostel fil led to capacity and very busy, we were only to willing to share own 
knowledge and help. In maintaining regular schedules, uti l is ing personnel effectively, 
educating and updating staff with new techniques and methods. We also provide staff for 
spring cleaning, windows and carpet maintenance. 

Must once again mention the Murray to Mayne. One which we will all remember as the 
worst yet (weather wise that is). 

This has been an interesting but busy year and we continue to learn from each other. 

Thanks to all other departments for their help and co-operation. 

Deanna Field 
Environmental Services Supervisor 
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COMMUNITY HEALTH 1997-98 

We have moved into the Elsie Bennett Community Centre which is a credit to the district, 
and a wonderful facility to use with its magnificent views of the lake. 

We took advantage of the facilities of the Community Centre and the Hospital when we 
hosted West Wimmera Women Building Community Spirit For All in April. Julie Stafford 
was the keynote speaker and inspired us all to build on what we have, whether as a 
personal health issue or a community issues. 

Ongoing Focus 

People attending the regular exercise classes continue to feel the many benefits. A chair 
based class is now offered to enhance residents. The aim of all of the classes is to 
enhance strength, flexibility, range of motion, balance and endurance, regardless of age. 
This year hand held weights have been introduced to all classes and taken up 
enthusiastically. A man has joined the ranks, he enjoys and feels the benefits of the class 
and wishes more men would join him. 

The importance of Breast Screen is recognised, the hospital bus takes women to Horsham 
and encourages ongoing education and the importance of Breast Screen and Pap smears. 

This year plans are underway to have a community health tent at the lamb sales in 
November offering blood pressure and blood sugar level tests, vaccination booster for 
tetanus and diphtheria and hopefully a sun spot check. 

Continence is another issue effecting 1 in 4 women and 1 in 6 older men in the community 
and education and information sessions are held. 

A meditation class continues to be of benefit to those attending, as do our popular 
overn ight trips. This year we went to Port Fairy and Halls Gap. 

We were successful in gaining a grant to commence a bicycling group for older adults. The 
sessions covered safety, using your gears and riding in traffic. There was some very 
surprised family members and riders when they rode either 8 or 16 km to Heather 
Futerieal's for our end of year break up. Some ladies not involved in the riding chose to 
walk part of the 8km. 

I  would like to thank all staff for their support, especially the administration staff for their 
he lp with posters etc. and the maintenance staff for helping to set up rooms and move 
furniture. 

Pauline Kelly 
Community Health Nurse/Infection Control 
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DAY CENTRE REPORT 1997-98 

1997 /98 has brought with it many changes to the Day Centre, the most significant 
moving into, and operating out of the Elsie Bennett Community Centre, (a superb 
building located in a magnificent setting!). 

The resignation of Co-ordinator Elwyn Cameron, the appointment of myself, and 
most recently the production/profitability type changes to HACC funding. 

The latter part of the year has seen the drawing up and distribution of monthly 
programs with the aim of lifting the profile of Day centre, "broadening the scope", to 
allow more Community interest. 

The mens group meeting alternate Wednesdays is a great success with visits to 
interesting destinations, always accompanied by a hotel lunch. 

Regular Day Centre clients have enjoyed a three day holiday to Port Fairy, an 
average of fortnightly day trips plus many stimulating in centre days. 

Paul ine Kelly introduced gentle exercises on a Tuesday morning, this session has 
proved to be most beneficial to those attending. 

The volunteers program has been structured to accommodate monthly meetings, 
training session and specific roles for each of our 10  wonderful volunteers. The 
volunteer input enables us to offer a most valuable quality of care that would be 
impossible to meet otherwise. 

Nursing Home and Hostel residents receive Day Centre programs and join us 
regularly for outings and activities. 

Overall 1997 /98 has been a busy and productive year. We look forward to bigger 
and better over the next 12  months. 

A sincere thank you to all departments for their co-operation and support throughout 
the year. Most importantly, thank you to the Day Centre team, staff/volunteers for 
their commitment dedication and genuine goodwill making the Day Centre such an 
enjoyable and rewarding place to be. 

Catherine Lahne 
Day Centre Co-ordinator 

Page 30 



Edenhope & District Memorial Hospital Annual Report1997/98 

DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS 

DISTRICT NURSING REPORT 1997-98 

We have come again to the end of another busy year. 

We averaged 30-40 clients for the year and did 3294 visits. To service these clients 
we travelled 13139 kms which is a 4071 km increase on last year. This averages to 
63 visits and 252 kms per week. 

We have again covered Edenhope and Apsley as well as Ullswater and Scrubby 
Lake on a regular basis. 

District Nursing assists with the hygiene needs of clients and also with dressing of 
wounds, BP and Blood Sugar Monitoring and the dispensing of medication either 
directly or by filling of dosettes. 

Liaison with Gwen Edgar has continued especially since the use of Personal Carers 
has increased. We have also worked closely with Linkages who provide Case 
Management for our more highly dependent clients. 

We have again worked closely with Sandra Hinch - Director of Nursing, Meredith 
Finnigan - Charge Nurse, Pauline Kelly - Community Health Nurse and Catherine 
Lahne - Day Centre Co-ordinator. 

We have continued to work with Dr. Dover whose support is invaluable in 
maintaining the care of our clients. 

We have attended various meeting and inservices during the year which have 
helped us to keep up with current trends in Home Nursing. 

We also shifted into our new office in the Elsie Bennett Community Centre. This has 
meant greater communication between all of the staff stationed there. 

The year ahead will see us maintaining a high quality of care in the community with 
the aim of keeping clients at home for as long as possible. 

Jenny Ackland and Gwen Hannaford 
District Nurses 
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LAKES HOSTEL REPORT 1997/98 

What a different story it is from this time last year. We have been extremely busy caring for a 
full house and various respite residents too. Sadly Julie Grigg passed away and we had to 
transfer Jessie Currie and two gentleman (Harry and Fred) to the Nursing Home because of 
the extra care they require. 

New staff include Chris Johnson and Jeanette Goodwin. Heather Irving continues to be our 
devoted weekly cook, for which we cannot thank her enough. Kerry and Chris successfully 
completed their PCA course, Nadia, Julie and Chris their dementia training (congrats girls). 
Mrs. Wait enjoys tickling the ivories regularly. 

We have held two successful fundraisers for the Hostel involving all residents in cooking 
afternoon tea. Pauline Kelly visits for armchair exercises weekly and Day Centre activities are 
combined twice weekly. All residents have access to the external services of dentistry, 
podiatry, optometry, physiotherapy and audiology. The Ladies Auxiliary have continued to be 
very generous for which we are grateful. Pastor Wragg and Mr. Ron Munn officiate at monthly 
Church services. Thank you. Dr. Dover makes more house calls over the winter months 
making life much easier for us and we appreciate his extra efforts. Once again our thanks go 
to Sandra, Tim, Hospital Staff, Office Staff, Kitchen Staff and Maintenance Men for their 
continued support and great interaction with us. 

Our roles have changed dramatically, as work load has increased greatly from conception and 
it is a credit to the staff that we remain a happy, content "family". 

Heather Fergusson 
Hostel Supervisor 

LAUNDRY SERVICES REPORT 1997/98 

During the past year the laundry performed very well. The work load has increased 
dramatically since we first opened our doors. With the hostel now on line and 100% occupied, 
we now cater for the needs of our 55 bed facility and the personal linen requirements of our 
patients and residents. 

In May this year we began our first major commercial contracts, supp lying laundry services to 
the Edenhope Motel and the Lake Wallace Hotel. 

Our equ ipment has been upgraded with the installation of electric heaters in the washers, to 
ensure that we comply with the Australian standards for water temperature and with the 
purchase of an ironing press. 

I would like to thank all of the staff for their co-operation during the year and look forward to 
meeting their needs in the coming year. 

Neil Pahl 
Laundry Supervisor 
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MAINTENANCE DEPARTMENT REPORT 1997-98 

Tedious and monotonous. Definitely not appropriate to describe life in the 
maintenance department at the moment or over the past couple of years. A more 
accurate description would be challenging, exciting and stimulating as we go through 
a period of rapid change and evolvement brought about by the finalisation of our 
extensive building program, striving to meet Accreditation requirements and 
recommendations, along with developing both policies and procedures to achieve 
best practice and quality improvement. In the meantime, juggling the regular duty 
needs of the department. 

Issues revolving around Accreditation were certainly uppermost in the departments 
efforts with surveyors recommendations highlighting several areas of attention and 
we are currently working toward meetings these targets. Albeit slowly. Items such as 
risk analysis on equipment, development of safe operating procedures, security, 
maintenance registers of plans and equipment and ensuring qualified personnel 
conduct equipment checks are some of the major recommendations that the 
department has to develop strategies for to meet the criteria. 

Occupational Health and Safety issues are prominent in al l  aspects of Hospital 
activity and performance, and accordingly, become a major component in policy and 
procedure evolvement. Working closer with the Occupational Health and Safety 
Officer, Nei l  Pahl we are slowly getting on top of this complex matter with the 
development of a hazard management policy and upgrades to our electrical safety 
policy and an overhaul of department safety procedures. 

Completion of the Elsie Bennett Community Centre finalised our building program 
and after a mad scramble to design and create a carparking area and bui lding 
access paths, all new bui lding works were opened in October 1997. Although the 
buildings were completed, a large amount of landscaping was still required to be 
completed. Progress has been slow with delays in kerbing and footpath construction 
putting a hold on some finishing touches with those touches only just being applied 
now. 

During the delays some pathways, preparation work and lighting installation along 
with the major construction tasks of a retaining wall and boundary fence to the east 
of the Lakes Hostel were undertaken. With a focus on the landscaping , only basic 
maintenance has been conducted on the remainder of the garden and grounds . 

Of great benefit to the department has been the expertise of Keith Rodgers . Init ially 
employed for a five months period in December of 1996 he remained on staff until 
February of 1998. Thanks a lot Keith for your cont inued efforts and excellence . 
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MAINTENANCE DEPARTMENT REPORT 1997-98(Cont) 

The department undertook a major renovation project late in 1997 when the Halahan 
Wing was converted into executive offices and the Administration Area received a 
small restructure. Although taking longer to finish than desired due, to delays 
caused by the Christmas/New Year break, great satisfaction was achieved by both 
department staff and the end users upon the completion of the renovations. 

Without the co-operation that the Hospital experiences from the local tradespeople 
many tasks undertaken by the department of an emergency nature or otherwise 
would not be able to be accomplished. The Hospital's close association with 
Edenhope Electrics, Edenhope Plumbing & Plumbing Supplies, Brian Grellet, Greg 
Thomas, Edenhope TV Service and Edenhope Auto Electrical along with the other 
business houses in town is of great benefit and enables us to cater for all 
contingencies that do arise from time to time. 

As part of the Murray to Mayne Cycle Relay Team we were also heavily involved 
with many of the fundraising activities revolving around this years highly successful 
campaign. 

Lately, after consultation, we underwent a restructure as a department. Its 
effectiveness is yet to be measured but in the short term it seems to be generating 
more output from staff. 

Ongoing activities are being directed toward improving our performance standards, 
although starting from scratch we still have a long way to go with the constant review 
requirement of existing programs delaying completion of the finished articles but 
leading to a more comprehensive and superior product in the end. 

Appreciative thanks to Tim, Sandra and department co-ordinators and staff for your 
guidance, patience and willingness to assist us in what we are trying to achieve as a 
department. 

Never knowing what each day will bring up creates a challenging and somewhat 
apprehensive atmosphere within the department and although it would be nice to 
have a structure to work by, we know that it is still a long way off. Yet we will tackle 
every task that is thrown at us with enthusiasm until we meet our goals and provide 
an improved and more efficient service to the Hospital and its clients than we 
already do. 

Darren Young 
Maintenance Supervisor 
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HOSPITAL AUXILIARY REPORT 1997-98 

Another successful year financially and plenty of fun doing it. Our Golf Day, Garden 
Walk, our night at bowls, at the Henley and at the Gourmet Day. I would like to 
thank al l  clubs and all who made their gardens available for us to have such a 
wonderful day. 

Also Marg Burns, Josie Campbell and Lorraine Harkness for linen parties - which the 
money raised was used to purchase raffles and linen for staff bedroom. 

Also Mrs. Sherriff for the beautiful Teddy Bear and Red Gum clock which we raffled 
very successfully and Josie Campbell for her generous donation to purchase a raffle. 

Our annual dinner was held at the Day Centre and a most enjoyable meal, thank you 
Andrew. A most enjoyable evening was had by all who attended. 

We missed our day at the races - next year maybe. 

We have purchased numerous items for the hospital, hostel and nursing home and 
hope to keep it up in the future. 

The major items purchased this year include:-  

Basic Unidown & Cover: (Nursing Home) 
Shower Commode Chair: (Nursing Home) 
Unidown and Cover: (Nursing Home) 
Thermometer Probe and covers: (Acute) 
BBQ: (Hostel) 
Pillow: (Nursing Home) 
Mortar and Pestle: (Hostel) 
Camera: (Hostel) 
Murray to Mayne: (Proceeds from clock raffle) 

$ 425.00 
$ 751 .00 
$ 230.00 
$ 236.85 
$ 342.00 
$ 32.50 
$ 12.00 
$ 60.30 
$ 349.00 
$ 2438.65 

In closing I must thank all our members new and old and the public for their support. 
Joyce and Dawn our secretaries and Marg our Treasurer. 

Flo Ryan 
President 
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MURRAY TO MOYNE 1998 

It was different, it was tough, it was wet and it was very, very windy. This year was 

the seventh consecutive year that Edenhope Hospital has put in a team for the 

Graham Woodrup Memorial Murray to Moyne Relay , and if you ever had any doubts 

about the number 7, the Murray to Moyne crew would all confirm the worst - 7 is not 

a good omen. 

There were many incidents before the ride even began that were ominous, but the 

only one that we will put in print was that the top of the second bike trailer was wiped 

out under a low overhang on the Saturday (Anzac day) morning. Fortunately the 

bikes had not been loaded, however a bike trailer that could no longer carry bikes 

was not a lot of good to us. Being the Anzac Day Public Holiday it was not s i m p l y  a  

matter of looking under the yellow pages for a welder either. Thanks to Tim's 

determined ( or possessed) search of the industrial area of Mildura ,  scanning for an 

open shed that may have a welder inside, this problem was rectified. 

The first group of riders set off from M i l d u r a  at 1 2 . 2 5 p m  on Saturday in what soon 

became a horrendous side and gusting galeforce wind. The wind did not abate at all 

throughout the ride and in fact caused a dust storm not far from Mildura where the 

support vehicle actually lost sight of the riders. The dust was soon replaced by 

driving rain, but the wind never let up - great weather for ducks, but not so for 

cyclists. P a u l i n e  Kelly, Lesley Payne and P h i l  Dover, all who have completed all 

seven rides had never experienced anything like this before - there are no two ways 

about it, it was tough. 

The ride continued in relay fashion, sometimes very very slow, as the wind became 

head on in places but everybody hung in there and completed their pledged 

kilometres .  Despite the conditions, more often than not there were more than four 

riders out in the group as riders sought to h e l p  out their mates by riding extra stints. 

Two riders, Andrew Lloyd and P h i l  Dover completed over 200 kilometers which was 

a courageous effort in such conditions when they actually only had to do 1 3 0  

kilometres to meet their commitment. 

The last group of Edenhope riders rode into H a m i l t o n ,  which is the designated re 

g ro u p i n g  spot for all three routes, M i l d u r a ,  Echuca and Swan H i ll ,  at 6am Sunday  

morning. It could be added that we d i d  not know what we would find at Hamilton as 

we had got reports a l o n g  the way from S E S  Officers that the H a m i l t o n  Showgrounds 

had been flooded out, that the Echuca group had been told to go straight on through 
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to Port Fairy, that many teams had pulled out and gone home. You can not image 

the relief at arriving and finding Alan and Merilyn O'Bryan with our tent set up and 

sleeping bags rolled out, it was just fabulous. The fact that it was now after 6am and 

we had to be up by 7 .15am seemed irrelevant, the chance to stretch out and shut 

those eyes, if only for an hour was too good to pass up, although some riders felt 

that the hour was better spent standing next to the fire in an attempt to dry out. 

Our first riders set off from Hamilton at around 8am, facing strong wind, heavy rain, 

and hills - a great combination. The final leg finished in Port Fairy at 12 .15pm, 10  

minutes short of the 24 hours. We usually stay in Port Fairy for the speeches and 

medals, but this year it was a case of "lets get home to Edenhope". 

A great thank you must be made to our fantastic support Crew- Bernie Kelly, Tom 

Payne, Tim Free and Dare Penrose. While it was tough going for the riders, it was 

certainly no picnic for these guys. Just try and imagine driving for nearly 24 hours 

straight in extremely strong side winds, rain, darkness, hundreds of cyclists in front, 

to the side and behind you, mini buses with trailers everywhere. Throw in, getting 

bikes on and off at regular intervals in the pouring rain, roads with edges like soup, 

fixing punctures and temperamental riders , and you might just get the picture. Dare's 

massage workload was increased dramatically as the conditions took their toll on 

the muscles. Thank's to Dare, our very own 'muscle mechanic' everyone was able to 

keep going. Well done and thank you guys - you are just champions. 

If you didn't sponsor anyone then think about doing so next year, and if you did  

thank you and we earned every cent of it. Many thanks to those put in extra 

sponsorship , it was really appreciated. 

We asked yourselves why in the hell do we put ourself through this, we must be 

insane, but the bottom l ine is - it puts equipment into OUR hosp ital and that is what it 

is all about. 

Character bu i ld ing, intestinal fortitude or just plain old guts and determination - that 

was the Murray to Mayne r ide for 1998. 

SUZIE CRANAGE 

PUBLICITY OFFICER 

MURRAY TO MOYNE 
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Auditors Report 

VICTORIN 

AUDITOR 

GENERALS 
OFFICE 

Auditing in tu 

Pblie hntere 

I submit my report on the audit of the financial statements of the Edenhope and District 
Memorial Hospital (the Hospital), for the year ended 30 June 1998,  conducted under the 
authority of the Audit Act 1994. 

1 .  AUDIT OBJECTIVES 

The objectives of the audit were to form an opinion as to whether: 

• the financial statements of the Hospital had been prepared in accordance with 
Australian Accounting Standards, the Financial Management Act 1994, 
Government policy directives and other mandatory professional requirements; 

• adequate systems of internal control were in existence and were operating 
satisfactorily throughout the financial year; and 

• the financial statements present fairly the financial position of the Hospital as at 
30 June 1998 .  

2. AUDIT SCOPE 

The scope of the audit, which was conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing 
Standards, included: 

• an examination, on a test basis, of the Hospital's accounting systems and 
transactions, including the evaluation of internal controls, and an assessment of 
the degree of compliance with relevant regulations and directives; and 

• the verification of the Hospital's financial statements for the year ended 30 June 
1998 .  

The audit does not provide any assurances that Hospital's systems, or any other 
systems that the Hospital relies on in the conduct of its activities such as those of 
suppliers and service providers are year 2000 compliant, or whether plans and 
associated actions are adequate to address the year 2000 issue. The year 2000 issue 
has been addressed only in the context of existing audit responsibilities under 
Australian Auditing Standards to express an opinion on the financial statements 

3. AUDIT OPIN ION ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly the financ ial position of the 
Edenhope and Distr ict Memorial Hospital as at 30 June 1 9 9 8  and the results of its 
operations and its cash flows for the year ended on that date in accordance with 
Austral ian Accounting Standards and other mandatory professional reporting 
requirements and comply with the requirements of the Financial Management Act 
1 9 9 4 .  
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Revenue and Expense Statement for the Year Ended 30 June 1998 

Notes Total Total 

1997 - 9 8  1996 - 97 

Revenue $ $ 

Services Supported By Health Service Agreement 

Government Grants 1,852,326 1 ,743,216 

Indirect Contributions by Human Services 40,543 32,848 

Patient Fees 829,305 861,987 

Recoupment from Private Practice for use of Hospital Facilities 3,490 3,005 

Other Revenue 37,320 82,091 

Sub-Total [ 2 ]  2,762,984 2,723,147 

Services Supported by Hospital & Community Initiatives 

Donations 41,372 72,416 

Interest 8,386 35,240 

Property Income 2,387 2,387 

Other Revenue 329,411 69,451 

Sub-Total L 3 ]  381,556 179,494 

Total Revenue 3,144,540 2,902,641 

Expenditure 

Services Supported By Health Service Agreement 

Employee Entitlements 2,033,757 1 , 9 4 9 , 1 5 8  

Fee for Service Medica l  Officers 1 1 5 , 6 4 7  1 2 1 , 3 8 9  

Supp l ies & Consumables 133,837 135,593 

Other 4 5 5 , 0 1 0  435,448 

Sub-Total [ 4 l 2,738,251 2,641,588 

Services Supported by Hospital & Community Initiatives 

Employee Entitlements 194,290 44,783 

Supplies & Consumables 39,648 2 1 , 7 0 4  

Other Expenses 4 0 , 1 7 9  1 6 , 5 3 5  

Sub-Total [ 4 l 274,117 83,022 

Total Expenditure [ 4 ]  3,012,368 2,724,610 

Surplus for the Year Before Capital Purpose Income 

and Depreciation 132,172 178,031 

Cap ital Purpose Income ( 5 ]  7,007 270,465 

Depreciation [ 6  ( 1 5 2 . 8 0 3 )  ( 1 4 0. 9 0 1 )  

Operating S u r p l u s  /  (Deficit) for the Year ( 1 3 . 6 2 4 )  307.,595 

Retained Earnings at J u l y  1  3 ,3 8 8 ,087 3 ,080 , 492  

R e t a i n e d  Earnings at 30 June 3,374,463 3 ,388,087 

This Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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Statement of Cash Flows for the year Ended 30 June 1998 

Total Total 

1997 - 98 1996-97 

$ $ 

Inflows/ Inflows/ 

Notes (Outflows) (Outflows) 
Cash Flows From Operating Activities 

Receipts 

Government Grants 

Patient Fees 

Donations 

Recoupment from Private Practice for use of Hospital Facilities 

Other 

Total Receipts 

Payments 

Employee Entitlements 

Other 

Total Payments 

Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities 

Purchases of Property, Plant and Equipment 

Proceeds from Sale of Properties, Plant & Equipment 

Capital Grants 

Proceeds from Sale of Investments 

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities 

Net Increase I (Decrease) in Cash Held 

Cash at 1 July 

1,738,820 1,702,530 

831 ,319 858,648 

41,372 72,416 

3,490 3,005 

374,425 264,714 

2,989,426 2,901 ,313 

(2,103,207) (1 ,921 ,172) 

(715,407) (719.706) 

(2,818,614) (2,640,878) 

[15] 170 ,812 260,435 

(234,370) (1,739,074) 

34,220 72,490 

5,000 243,581 

1 ,006 , 1 15  

(195,150) (416,888) 

(24,338) (156,453) 

29,666 1 8 6 , 1 1 9  

Cash at 30 June 

This statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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Balance Sheet as at 30 June 1998 

EQUITY 

Retained Earnings 

Total Equity 

Total Total 

1998 1997 

Notes $ $ 

(22] 3,374,463 3,388,087 

3,374,463 3,388,087 

LIABILITIES 

Current Liabilities 

Payables 

Employee Entitlements 

Monies held in Trust 

Total Current Liabilities 

[ 8 ]  

( 9 ]  

(10] 

127,207 

384,801 

191 ,201 

703,209 

182,470 

323,970 

121,786 

628,226 

Non-Current Liabilities 

Employee Entitlements [ 9 ]  308,494 253,374 

Total Non-Current Liabilities 308,494 253,374 

Total Liabilities 1,011 ,703 881,600 

Total Equity and Liabilities 4,386,166 4,269,687 

ASSETS 

Current Assets 

Cash at Bank and On Hand [16] 5,328 29,666 

Inventory ( 1 1 )  22,692 24,619 

Prepayments 2,790 3 , 161  

Receivables ( 12] 1 17 ,5 16  93,170 

Monies held in Trust (10] 191 ,201  121 ,786 

Total Current Assets 339,527 272,402 

Non-Current Assets 

Land (13] 235,000 235,000 

Buildings (13] 3 , 13 1 ,960  2,822,857 

Plant and Equipment (13) 572,481 602,064 

Furniture and Fittings (13) 107,198 95,200 

Other (14] 242,164 

Total Non-Current Assets 4,046,639 3,997,285 

Total Assets 4,386,166 4,269,687 

This statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 

Page Ill  



Edenhope and District Memorial Hospital Financial Statements for the Year Ended 30 June 1998 

Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements 

Note 1 Statement of Accounting Policies 

The general purpose Financial Statements of the Hospital have been prepared in accordance with the 
provisions of the Financia1 Management Act 1994. These requirements incorporate relevant accounting 
standards issued jointly by The Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia and the Australian Society 
of Certified Practising Accounts and other mandatory professional reporting requirements. (Urgent Issues 
Group Concensus Views) 

(a) Accrual Basis 

Except where otherwise stated, these financial statements have been prepared on the accrual 
basis whereby revenues and expenses are recognised when they are earned or incurred, and are 
brought to account in the period to which they relate. 

(b) Historical Cost Basis 

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis whereby assets are 
recorded at purchase price plus costs incidental to their acquisition and do not take into account 
changing money values nor the current cost of non-current assets (unless specifically stated). 

(c) Rounding Off 

All amounts shown in the financial statements are expressed to the nearest dollar. 

(d) Investments 

Investments are valued at cost and are classified between current and non-current assets based 
on the Hospital Board of Management's intention at balance date with respect to the timing of 
disposal of each investment. Interest revenue from investments is brought to account when it is 
earned. 

(e) Depreciation 

Assets with a cost in excess of $1,000 are capitalised and depreciation has been provided on 
depreciable assets so as to allocate their cost (or valuation) over their estimated useful lives using 
the straight line method. This depreciation charge is not funded by the Department of Human 
Services. 
The following table indicates the expected useful lives of non current assets on which the 
depreciation charges are based. 

Buildings 
Plant & Equipment 
Furniture & Fittings 

(f) Inventories 

Up to 50 years 
Up to 10  years 
Up to 10  years 

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined principally 
by the first-in, first-out method. 
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Edenhope and District Memorial Hospital Financial Statements for the Year Ended 30 June 1998 

Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements for the 
Year Ended 30 June 1998 continued 

(g) Employee Entitlements 

Based on pay rates current at balance date. On costs such as workcover and superannuation 
are included in the calculation of leave provisions. 
Long Service Leave 
The provision for long service leave is determined in accordance with Accounting Standard 
AAS30. Generally, the entitlement under various awards becomes payable upon completion of 
ten years' service. The proportion of long service leave estimated to be payable within the next 
financial year is a current liability. The balance of the provision is classified as a non-current 
liability measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflow arising from 
employee's services to date. 
Wages and Salaries, Annual Leave and Accrued Days Off 
Liabilities for wages and salaries, annual leave and accrued days off are recognised and are 
measured as the amount unpaid at the reporting date in respect of employee's services up to that 
date. 

(h) Nursing Home 

The Edenhope Nursing Home has a separate Committee of Management and is substantially 
funded from Commonwealth bedday subsidies. 

The Nursing Home operations are an integral part of the part of the Hospital and share its 
resources. Consequently the assets and liabilities have not been segregated in the balance 
sheet. The results of the two operations have been segregated based on actual revenue earned 
and expenditure incurred by each operation. 

(i) Donations 

Donations are recognised as revenue when the cash is received. 

(k) Fund Accounting 

The Hospital operates on a fund accounting basis and maintains two funds; Operating and Capital 
Funds. The Hospitals Capital fund includes unspent capital donations and receipts from donations 
and receipts from fund raising activities conducted solely in respect of these funds.  

(1) Services Supported By Health Services Agreement and Services Supported by Hospital 
and Community Initiatives. 

The Activities classified as Services Supported by Health Services Agreement are substantially 
funded by the Department of Human Services while Services Supported by Hospital and 
Community Initiatives are funded by the Hospital's own activities or local initiatives. 

(m) Comparative Information 

Where necessary, the figures from the previous year have been classified to facilitate 
comparisons. 
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Edenhope & District Memorial Hospital Financial Statements tor the Year Ended 30 June 1998 
Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements 

Note 2: Revenue from Services Supported By Health Services Agreement 

Acute Aged Co-Ordinated Total Total 
Care Care Care 1997/98 1996/97 

$ $ $ $ $ 

Government Grants 
- Department of Human Services 1,532,126 256,283 36,550 1,824,959 1,731,388 
- Other State Government 27,367 27,367 11 ,828 

Indirect Contributions by Human Services 34,015 5,757 771 40,543 32,848 
- Insurance 

Patient Fees ( refer note 2a and note 7) 149,622 679,683 829,305 861,987 
Recoupment from Private Practice for use of 
Hospital Facilities 3,490 3,490 3,005 
Other Revenue 3,789 14,428 19,103 37,320 82,091 
Total 1,723,042 956,151 83,791 2,762,984 2,723,147 

Indirect Contributions by Human Services 
Department of Human Services makes insurance payments on behalf of the hospital. These amount have been 
brought to account in determining the operating result for the year by recording them as revenue and expenses. 

Note 2a: Patient Fees 
Patient Fees Raised 
1997/98 1996/97 

$ $ 

Patient Fees Receivable 
1997/98 1996/97 

$ $ 

Acute - Inpatients 
Aged Care - Nursing Home 
Total 

Less Provision for Doubtful Debts - Aged Care 
Net Patient Fees Receivable 

149,622 166 ,211  39,086 31,741 
679,683 695,776 25,952 35,312 
829,305 861,987 65,038 67,053 

(619) (619)  
64,419 66,434 

Commonwealth Nursing Home inpatient benefits are included in patient fee revenue. 
The hospital charges fees in accordance with Department of Human Services directives 

Note 3: Services Supported by Hospital & Community Initiatives 

Revenue 

Business Units and Specific Purpose Services 
Hostel 
Catering 
Laundry 
Other - various 
Sub-Total 
Other Specific Purpose Services 
Donations 
Interest 
Property Rental 
Sub-Total 
Total Revenue 

Expenses 

Total Total 
1997/98 1996/97 

$ $ 

302,027 37,095 
23,399 32,089 

868 
3 , 1 1 7  267 

329,411 69,451 

41 ,372 72,416 
8,386 35,240 
2,387 2,387 

52,145 110 ,043 
381,556 179,494 

Business Units 
Catering 
Other Specific Purpose Services 
Hoste l 
Total 
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Edenhope & District Memorial Hospital Financial Statements for the Year Ended 30 June 1998 
Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements 

Note 4: Operating Expenses 

Services Supported by Acute Aged Co-ordinated Other Total Total 
Health Service Agreement Care Care Care 1997 -98 1996 - 97 

$ $ $ $ $ $ 

Employee Entitlements 
Salaries and Wages 992,803 763,153 59,865 1 ,815,821  1,746,588 
Workcover 1 1 ,577 5,460 507 17,544 20,958 
Long Service Leave 39,834 24,783 3,342 67,959 50,612 
Superannuation 70,522 59,588 2,323 132,433 131,000 

Fee for Service Medical Officers 115,647 115,647 121 ,389 
Supplies & Consumables 

Drug Supplies 40,962 40,962 38,378 
Medical and Surgical Supplies 26,012 3,533 29,545 27,952 
Food Supplies 26,285 37,045 63,330 69,263 

Other Expenses 
Domestic Services 17,414 25,324 687 43,425 49,258 
AdministrativeExpenses 72,194 47,807 11 ,389 131 ,390 134,963 
Repairs and Maintenance 40,146 28,129 3,792 72,067 74,185 
Patient Transport 21 ,317  2 1 ,3 17  22,701 

Audit Fees - Auditor General 2,464 1,628 308 4,400 4,100 
Other 
- Indirect Contributions ( DHS) 34,015 5,757 771 40,543 32,848 

- Light and Power 25,542 27,120 1,585 54,247 58,973 

- Medical Support Services 49,651 4,102 33,868 87,621 58 ,420 

Sub-Total 1,586,385 1,033,429 118,437 2,738,251 2,641,588 

Services Supported by Hospital Acute Aged Co-ordinated Other Total Total 

and Community Initiatives Care Care Care 1997 - 98 1996 • 97 

$ $ $ $ $ $ 

-mployee Entitlements 
Salaries and Wages 183,416 183,416 38,834 

Workcover 2,492 2,492 497 

Long Service Leave 5,152 5,152 3 ,411  

Superannuation 3,230 3,230 2,041 

Fee for Service Medical Officers 
upplies & Consumables 
Drug Supp l ies 
Medical and Surgical Supplies 584 584 

Food Supp l ies 39,064 39,064 21,704 

)ther Expenses 
Domestic Services 7,784 7,784 1 ,594 

Admin istrativeExpenses 4,678 4,678 4,834 

Repairs and Maintenance 2,707 2,707 3,097 

Light & Power 25,010 25 ,010 7.,010 

Sub-Total 274,117 274,117 83,022 

OTAL EXPENSES 

As per Revenue_And Expense Statement) 1,586,385 1,033,429 118,437 274,117 3,012,368 2,724,610 

Page V I I I  



Edenhope & District Memorial Hospital Financial Statements tor the Year Ended 30 June 1998 
Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements 

Note 5: Capital Purpose Income 

Commonwealth Government Grants 
State Government Grants 
Other _ ( re fer  to 5a) 
Total 

Note Sa: Other Capital Purpose Income 

Revenue from the Disposal of Physical Assets 
Proceeds from Disposal 
Less Written Down Value of Assets Sold 
Net revenue from Disposal of Physical Assets 

Note 6: Depreciation 

Buildings 
Plant & Equipment 
- Plant 
- Transport 
- Major Medical 
- Computers and Communication 
- Other Equipment 
Furniture & Fittings 
Total 

Allocation of Depreciation 
Services Supported by Health Services Agreement 
Services Supported by Hospital and Community Initiatives 

Total 

Total Total 
1997/98 1996/97 

$ $ 

5,000 137,074 
106,507 

2,007 26,884 
7007 270 465 

Total Total 
1997/98 1996/97 

$ $ 

34,220 72,490 
(32,213) (45.606) 

2,007 26,884 

Total Total 
1997/98 1996/97 

$ $ 

52,564 34,487 

16,980 13,435 
5,600 32,070 

12,903 15,661 
15,995 16,654 
32,550 17,267 
16 ,211  11 ,327 

152,803 140,901 

132,680 129,452 .... 

20,123 11 ,449 
152.803 140,901 

Note 7: Patient Fee Adjustments 

Revenue 
Commonwealth Nursing Home Fees 1995/96 (a) 
Commonwealth Nursing Home Fees 1994/95 (b) 
Net Increase to Operating Result 

1997 - 98 

$ 

1 9 9 6 -  97 

$ 

22,647 
21,395 
44,042 

(a)The commonwealth Department of Health and Family Services made a retrospective payment dating back 
to 1994/95 in recognition as the Nursing Home being classified as designated/ isolated. This designated 
funding was received on a monthly basis in 1995/96 and 1996/97. 
(b) Payment received after the reconciliation of the 1994/95 Nursing Home Funding from the Commonwealth Dept. 
of Health & Family services. 

- Note 8: Payables Current Non Total Total 
Current 1997/98 1996/97 

$ $ $ $ 

Trade Creditors 120,392 120,392 76,790 
Department of Human Services 90,225 
Accrued Expenses 6 ,8 15  6 ,8 15  15.455 

TOTAL 127.207 127.207 182,470 
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Edenhope & District Memorial Hospital Financial Statements tor the Year Ended 30 June 1998 
Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements 

Note 9: Employee Entitlements 

Current 
Annual Leave 
Accrued Days Off 

Accrued Salaries and Wages 
Long Service Leave 
Sub-Total Current 
Non-Current 
Long Service Leave 
Total Employee Entitlements 

Movement In Long Service Leave 

Movement In Long Service Leave 

Total Total 
1997/98 1996/97 

$ $ 

259,647 212,667 
7,171 8,823 

82,983 67,480 
35,000 35,000 

384.801 323.970 

308,494 253,374 
693,295 577,344 

Balance Provision Settlement Balance 
1-7-97 Made 97/98 Made 97/98 30-6-98 

$ $ $ $ 

288,374 73 , 1 1 1  (17,991) 343,494 

The following assumptions were adopted in measuring present value; 
Salary On-Costs 10.00% 
Wage Inflation Rate 4.90% 
Bond Rate: 

I Future Year 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 
Bond Rate 5.00 5 . 17  5.24 5.31 5.37 5.43 5.49 
Future Year 9 10 1 1  12 13 14 1 5  

I  Bond Rate 5.52 5.54 5.58 5.58 5.58 5.58 5 .58 
1  Future Year 1 6  16+ 
Bond Rate 5.58 5.58 

Note: 1 0  Monies Held in Trust Total Total 
1997/98 1996/97 

$ $ 

Patient Monies held in Trust 6,503 8,036 
Refundable Entrance Fees 184,698 113,750 

Total Monies held in Trust 191,201 121,786 

Represented by: 
ash at Bank - Patient Trust Account 6 ,503 8,036 
Cash at Bank - Refundable Entrance Fees 184,698 113,750 

Total Cash at Bank 191,201 121,786 

Note 1 1 :  Inventory Total Total 
1997/98 1996/97 

$ $ 

Pharmaceuticals 9,747 1 1 ,979 

Catering Supplies 4,881 3,071 

-lousekeeping Supplies 544 1,963 

ledical and Surgical Lines 7,520 7 ,606 

Total 22,692 2 4 , 6 1 9  
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Edenhope & District Memorial Hospital Financlal Statements for the Year Ended 30 June 1998 
Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements 

Note: 12  Receivables Current Non Total Total 
Current 1997/98 1996/97 

$ $ $ $ 
Inter Hospital Debtors 2,856 2,856 5,223 
Trade Debtors 22,810 22,810 18355 
Patient Fees 65,038 65,038 67,053 

- Accrued Investment Income 1 ,540 1,540 1,070 
Accrued Revenue 
- Department of Human Services 24,380 24,380 1,098 
- Department of Veteran Affairs 1 , 5 1 1  1 , 5 1 1  990 

TOTAL 1 18 , 135 118,135 93,789 

Less Provision for Doubtful Debts 
Patient Fees (619) (619) 
Total (619) (619) 

Net Debtors and Accrued Revenue 117,516 93,170 

Bad and Doubtful Debts 
Acute Inpatients 600 
Nursing_Home 600 
Total 1,200 

• 

Gross Accumul. Written Written Additions Disposals 
Note 13:  Fixed Assets Cost/ Dep'n Down Down 1998 1998 

Valuation 1998 Value Value 
1998 1998 1997 

$ $ $ $ $ $ 

At Valuation 
Freehold Land 
- Hospital 176,250 176,250 176,250 
- Nursing Home 58,750 58,750 58,750 

Sub-Total Freehold Land 235,000 235,000 235,000 
Buildings 
- Hospital 979,588 63,916 915,672 933,375 
- Nursing Home 566,720 45,337 521,383 532,717 

Sub-Total Buildings 1 ,546,308.  109,253 1,437,055 1,466,092 
Total 1,781,308 109,253 1,672,055 1,701,092 

At Cost 
Build ings 
- Hospital Upgrade 524,614 10 ,106 514,508 486,961 33377 
- Hostel 876,563 17,776 858,787 869,804 2123 
- Community Centre 326,168 4,558 321 ,6 10  326168 

• 
Total Bui ldings 1,727,345 32,440 1,694,905 1,356,765 361668 

Plant and Equipment 
Plant 190,681 88,317 102,364 1 19 ,344 d  

Transport 173,593 79,337 94,256 74,416 56077 30,637 

Major Medical 193,041 121 ,955 71 ,086 78,659 5330 
Computers and Communication 121 ,580 56,637 64,943 74,715 7800 1 ,576 

Other Equipment 366,189 126,357 239,832 254,930 17452 

Sub-Total Plant and Equipment 1,045,084 472,603 572,481 602,064 86659 32.213 

Furniture & Fittings 189 ,913  82,715 107 , 198 95,200 28209 

Tota l 2,962,342 587,758 2,374,584 2,054,029 476,536 32,213 

Valuations of land and buildings 
The basis of valuation of land and buildings is replacement cost less accumulated depreciation on that portion of the 
assets useful life that has exp ired . The 1994 valuations were carried out by Ian Wilson - AVLE (VALS) as at 
30th June, 1994. 

Page XI 



Edenhope & District Memorial Hospital Financial Statements tor the Year Ended 30 June 1998 
Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements 

Note:14 Other Assets 

Non-Current Assets 
Capital Works_in Progress 
Total 

As at 30 June 1997 the new Community Centre was being constructed. As at 30 June 1998 
all projects have been completed. 

Note 15 :  Reconciliation of Net Cash From Operating Activities to operating Result 

Operating Surplus I {Deficit) for the Year 
Less Income Designated for Capital Purposes 
Entity Surplus/ (Deficit) prior to Capital Items 

Non Cash Movements 
Depreciation 
lncrease/(Decrease) in Payables 
Increase in Employee Entitlements 
(Net Revenue) from Sale of Plant and Equipment 
(lncrease)/Decrease in Other Current Assets 
(lncrease)/Decrease in Receivables 
Net Cash from Operating Activities 

Total 
1997/98 

$ 

Total 
1997/98 

$ 

(13,624) 
(5,000) 

(18,624) 

152,803 
(55,263) 

1 1 5 , 9 5 1  
(2,007) 

2,298 
(24,346) 

1 7 0 , 8 1 2  

Total 
1996/97 

$ 

2 4 2 , 1 6 4  
242 164 

Total 
1996/97 

$ 

307,595 
(243,581) 

64,014 

140,901 
3 9 , 1 7 5  
74,494 

(26,884) 
(20,360) 
( 1 0. 9 0 5 )  

260,435 

Note 1 6 :  R e c o n c i l i a t i o n  of Cash 

For the purposes of the Statement of cash flows, the hospital considers cash to include cash on hand 
and in banks, and investments in money market instruments. Cash at the end of the reporting 
period as shown in the Statement of cash flows is reconciled to the related items in the statement of 
financial position as follows; 

Total 
1997/98 

$ 

Total 
1996/97 

$ 

Cash on Hand 
Financial Institutions 
Cash on Hand 
Total Cash at 30 June 

4,828 
500 

5,328 

2 9 , 1 6 6  
500 

29,666 

The Edenhope & District Memorial  Hospital consolidates all monies into one bank account. 

Note 17:  Financial Instruments 

(a) Interest Rate Exposure 
The hospital's exposure to interest rate risk, which is the risk that a financial instruments value will fluctuate as a 
result of changes in market interest rates and the effective average interest rates on classes of financial assets 
and financial liabilities is as follows; 

Financ ia l  assets 
Cash 
Trade Debtors 
Other Receivables 
Tota l  Financial Assets 

F inancia l  Liabilit ies 
Trade Creditors and Accruals 
Total Financial Liabilities 

Floating 
Interest 

Rate 
$ 

4,828 

4,828 

1 Year 
or 

Less 
$ $ $ 

Non Tota l  
Interest 
Bearing 

$ $ 

500 5,328 
22,810 22,810 
95.,325 95.325 

1 1 8 , 6 3 5  123,463 

127.207 127.207 
127,207 127,207 

(8,572)  (3,744) Net Financial Asset/Liabilities 4,828 

Fixed Interest Rate Maturing 
1 o r  2  Over 5 

Years Years 

Weighted Average Effective Interest Rate 
Financial Assets 3.64% 

- F inancial  Liabi l i t ies 0.00% 
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Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements 

Note 17: Financial Instruments continued .......•.•.. 

Total Total Net 
Book Market 
Value Value 

$ $ 

5,328 5,328 
22,810 22,810 
95,325 95,325 

123,463 123,463 Total Financial Assets 

Financial assets 
Cash 
Trade Debtors 
Other Receivables 

(b) Credit Fisk 

The maximum exposure to credit risk, excluding the value of any collateral or other security, at balance date to 
recognised financial assets, is the carrying amount, net of any provisions for doubtful debts, as disclosed in the 
balance sheet and notes to the financial statements. The hospital does not have any significant credit risk exposure. 

(c) Market Value 

Net maret values are capital amounts 
( )  Cash and non-interest bearing financial assets and liabilities (trade debtors, other receivables and trade 
creditors) are valued at cost which approximates net market value. 

Financial Liabilities 
Trade Creditors and Accruals 
Total Financial Liabilities 

127,207 
127,207 

127,207 
127,207 

Note 18:  Commitments 

Land and Bu i ldings (No later than 1 year) 
Total 

Total 

1997/98 
$ 

Total 

1996/97 
$ 

24,787 
24,787 

As at 30 June 1998, the Edenhope and District Memorial Hospital did not have any capital commitments. 

Note 19 :  Contingent Liabilities 

As at 30 June 1998 there were no known contingent liabilities. 

Note 20: Superannuation 

The Financial Management Act 1994 came into operation as at 1st July 1994. This act has amended the superannuation 
disclosure requirements applicable to contributed income sector bodies for the 1994/95 and subsequent financial 
years. Accordingly, the following are disclosed; 

() The hospital contributes to the Hospitals Superannuation Fund. 
(ii) Contributions made by the Hospital during 1997/98 were $135 ,173 
(iii) As at balance date, contributions totalling $5,195 were outstanding in respect of the 1997/98 year. 
(iv) In accordance with Section 29(2)(a) of the Hospitals Superannuation Act 1988, participating 
employer contributions are calculated as a percentage of the employee's salary. Separate contributions 
are determined for Basic Benefits/HOSfund on the one hand and optional Contributory Benefits on the 
other, in accordance with Section 29(3). The rates for 1997/98 for all Class A participating employers were  

Basic Benefit Schemes - Payrolls greater than $1m - 6% 
Contributory Scheme Employee Emplover 

Contribution Rate 3.0% 3.0% 
4.0% 4.0% 
6.0% 4.0% 

(v) As at ba lance date there were no loans to the hospital from employee Superannuation Funds 
The unfunded superannuat ion liability in respect to members of the Hospital's Superannuat ion Fund is 
shown as a l iab i l ity separately by the Department of Treasury and Finance. 
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Notes to and Forming Part of the Flnanclal Statements 

Note 2 1 :  Responsible Person Related Disclosures 

(a) Responsible Persons 
The following persons were Responsible Persons of the Edenhope & District Memorial Hospital during the 1997/98 financial ye 

Mr A. Knowles MLC 
Mr. D.W. Currie 
Mrs. E. Kealy 
Dr. P.A.J. Dover 
Mr. A. R. Hawkins 
Mr. C. Kealy 

Mr. M. Holland 
Mrs. E.M.M. Edgar 
Mr. J.S. Warner 
Dr. R.W. Bade 
Mrs. J. Heffernan 
Mr. T. Free ( CEO) 

(b) Remuneration of Responsible Persons 

No remuneration was paid to any of the Responsible Persons in 1997/98 
The remuneration of the Accountable Officer who is not a member 
of the Board is reported under "Executive Officer Remuneration" 
Mr. Timothy Free was the Accountable Officer during the 1997/98 financial year. 

(c) Retirement Benefits of Responsible Persons 

No retirement benefits were paid to any of the Responsible Persons in 1997/98 

1997 - 98 

$ 
nil 

1997 - 98 
$ 
nil 

1996 - 97 

$ 
nil 

1996 - 97 
$ 
nil 

(d) Other Transactions with Responsible Persons and their Related Parties 
Two Board Members, Dr. Bade and Dr. Dover have provided medical services to the Hospital in their capacity as Visiting 
Medical Officers, on normal commercial terms and conditions. The aggregate amounts were; 

1998 

$ 
1997 

$ 
Medical Services 112,609 116 , 101  

(e) Other Receivables from and Payables to Responsible Persons and their related Parties. 

There were no amounts receivable from or payable to Responsible Persons 
or their related parties in 1997/98 

(f) Amount Attributable to Other Transactions With Responsible Persons 
and their Related Parties. 

There were no amounts attributable to other transactions with Responsible Persons 
or their related parties in 1997/98 

g) Executive Officer Remuneration 

No hospital Executive Officer receives remuneration in excess of $100,000 

1997- 98 

$ 
nil 

1997- 98 

$ 

nil 

1996 - 97 
$ 
nil 

1996 - 97 

$ 

ni l 

Note 22: Reconciliation Of Changes In Equity 

Retained Earnings 
1998 1997 

$ $ 

3,374,463 3,388,087 

3,388,087 3,080,492 
(3.624) 307,595 

Total 
1997 

$ 

3,388,087 

3,080,492 
307,595 

Total 
1998 

$ 

3.,374,463 

3,388,087 
(13.624) 

3alance at End of Reporting Period 

8alance at Beginning of Report ing Period 
2perating Surplus /(Deficit)_ for  the Year 

Page XIV 



Edenhope & District Memorial Hospital Financlal Statements for the Year Ended 30 June 1998 
Notes to and Forming Part of the Flnanclal Statements 

Note 23: AFS (CF) Ellmlnatlons 

Intra 
Health 

Portfollo 
$ 

Inter 

Health 

Portfollo 

$ 

Assets 
Liabilities 
Revenue 
Expenses 

Note24: Donations 

Total Donations of $41,373 received during the year included the following significant donations; 

Murray to Moyne Cycle Relay Team 
Charlegrark Country Music Festival Committee 
Mr. P. Carracher 
Edenhope Ladies Auxiliary 
HJ Smith - In memory of G & E Plunkett 
Edenhope Lions Club 
RR & PM Hawkins 
Apsley Golf Club 
Ms. J. Campbell 
DR & BM Mott 
DW & BJ Currie 
Edenhope Bowling Club 
JF & EM Kirby 
D & E Edgar 
Estate of the late Sylvia Dixon 
L. Krause 

J. Heffernan 
AW & JB Stephens 
Apsley Fire Brigade 
C & L McClure 
GI & LGE Robinson 
GJ & FM Ryan 
Harrow Johnny Mullagh Park Committee 
J (Dec'd) & A McDougall 
RM & M Burgess 
Uniting Church Fellowship 
WN & LB Loane 
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28,236 
15,142 

1,903,225 
167,404 

1997 - 98 

$ 

14,076 
4,500 
3,000 
1,621 
1,600 
1,200 
1,000 

300 
300 
250 
250 

245 

200 
200 
200 

200 
150 

100 

100 

100 

100 

100 

100 

100 

100 

100 

100 

1 , 187 

1,849 

8,941 

1996- 97 

$ 

13,370 

3,000 

9,000 

450 

300 

160 
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Edenhope and District Memorial Hospital 

Certification 

In our opinion the Report of Operations and the Financial Statements of the Edenhope and District 
Memorial Hospital, comprising Revenue and Expense Statement, Balance Sheet, Statement of Cash 
Flows, and notes to the Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of 
the Financial Management Act 1994 and the Directions of the Minister for Finance - Part 9 reporting 
Provisions. 

In our opinion the financial statements represent fairly the financial transactions for year ended 30 
June 1998 and the financial position as at that date of the Edenhope and District Memorial Hospital. 

At the date of signing the financial statements we are not aware of any circumstances which would 
cause any particulars in the statements to be misleading or inaccurate. 

Michael HOLLAND 
Chairperson 
[On behalf of the Board] 

Sandra HINCH 
Acting / Chief Executive Officer 
[Accountable Officer] 

Dated the 
[Eden hope] dayof -<-T 
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